1992

Kennecott Corporation v. Salt Lake County and The Utah State Tax Commission of Utah : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

JURISDICTION

The Utah Supreme Court has jurisdiction in this matter pursuant to Utah Code Annotated, § 78-2-2(3).

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Did the trial court err in determining that plaintiff/appellee, Kennecott Corporation ("Kennecott") is entitled to relief relative to its January 1, 1983, tax assessment, based upon this court's decision in Rio Algom Corp. v. San Juan County, 681 P.2d 184 (Utah 1984)?

STANDARD OF REVIEW

The sole issue in this appeal is a question of law. The standard of review is a "correction of error" standard. The trial court's conclusions of law are accorded no deference, but are reviewed for correctness. Bailey v. Call, 767 P.2d 138 (Utah Ct.App. 1989); T.R.F. v. Felan, 760 P.2d 906 (Utah Ct.App. 1988); General Glass Corp. v. Master Construction Co., 754 P.2d 438 (Utah Ct.App. 1988); Western Kane County Cattle Co., 744 P.2d 1376 (Utah 1987).

RELEVANT STATUTES

Utah Constitution, Article XIII, Section 2:

All tangible property in the state, not exempt under the laws of the United States, or under this Constitution, shall be taxed at a uniform and equal rate in proportion to its value, to be ascertained as provided by law.

Utah Constitution, Article XIII, Section 3:

The Legislature shall provide by law a uniform and equal rate of assessment on all tangible property in the state, according to its value in money, The Legislature shall prescribe by law such provisions as shall secure a just valuation for taxation of such property, so that every person and corporation shall pay a tax in proportion to the value of his, her, or its tangible property,

Utah Code Annotated, § 59-3-1 (Supp. 1983) - See Appendix 3.

Utah Code Annotated, § 59-5-57 ~ See Appendix 3.

Utah Code Annotated, § 59-5-109 (Supp. 1981) - See Appendix 3.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Nature of the Case.

This appeal seeks review of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Summary Judgment and the Order, both dated February 28, 1992, of the Honorable Kenneth Rigtrup, entered in the Third Judicial District Court (collectively referred to herein as the "Judgment"), which reduced the assessed value of Kennecott's property, as of January 1, 1983, from \$136,449,995 to an assessed value of \$123,405,445.

B. Course of Proceedings Below.

In 1983, Kennecott sought review of the January 1, 1983, assessment of its property by the State Assessed Property Division of the Utah State Tax Commission (the "Commission"), asserting that

application of the rollback provisions contained in § 59-5-109 to locally assessed properties and not to state-assessed properties such as Kennecott, was violative of Article XIII, Sections 2, 3 and/or 4 of the Utah Constitution. After an informal hearing, the Commission issued a decision sustaining the assessment.

Before the formal hearing was held, this court's decision in the Rio Algom Corp. case, supra, was issued. Kennecott requested a formal hearing to challenge the Commission's decision. The Commission found that Kennecott was not entitled to the relief granted in the Rio Algom case and, thereafter, Kennecott filed a Complaint, Notice of Appeal and Petition for Review in the Tax Division of the Third Judicial District Court, seeking a reduction in the assessed value of its property and a refund of taxes paid in 1983 under protest in the amount of \$898,475.

The District Court determined that Kennecott was entitled to the relief granted by the Utah Supreme Court in the Rio Algom case and remanded the case to the Commission for further proceedings. At the termination of those proceedings, the case was again referred to the Third Judicial District Court for review. The District Court found that Kennecott had met the two-prong test established in the Rio Algom case and granted summary judgment in favor of Kennecott.

C. Statement of Relevant Facts.

1. On May 24, 1983, the State Assessed Property Division of the Commission sent a Notice of Assessment to Kennecott, informing Kennecott that its personal and real property had been assessed as of January 1, 1983. The assessed value of Kennecott's property for 1983 was \$136,685,576. R. 336.

2. On June 1, 1983, Kennecott filed a Petition of Protest relative to its 1983 assessment with the Commission. This Petition protested the Notice of Assessment as it applied to the assessed real property "on the grounds that the Notice of Assessment . . . failed to apply a rollback to 1978 values on that real property assessed by the Utah State Tax Commission." R. 2.

3. On June 29, 1983, the Commission held an informal hearing on Kennecott's protest. R. 20.

4. On January 26, 1984, the Commission issued a decision denying Kennecott the reduction it sought, and sustaining the original assessment. R. 20.

5. On March 13, 1984, the Utah Supreme Court issued its decision in Rio Algom Mining Corp. v. San Juan County, 681 P.2d 184 (Utah 1984). The named plaintiffs in the Rio Algom case were Rio Algom Corporation, Utah Power & Light, Energy Fuels Nuclear, Inc., Consolidated Oil and Gas, Inc., Atlas Corporation, and Northwest Pipeline Corporation.

6. On June 4, 1984, Kennecott petitioned the Commission for a formal hearing on its 1983 assessment. Kennecott specifically claimed that it was entitled to have the value of the property "rolled back" from its 1983 value to 1978 levels, pursuant to Article XIII, Section 4 of the Utah Constitution or, alternatively, pursuant to Article XIII, Sections 2 and 3.

7. On September 11, 1984, the Commission held a formal hearing on Kennecott's 1983 protest and, on June 27, 1985, issued its Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Final Decision. R. 20. In its Final Decision, the Commission found that "the roll back in property values for locally assessed property was done pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 59-5-109 (1953, as amended). That statute was held to be unconstitutional by the Supreme Court of Utah in the case of Rio Algom Corp. v. San Juan County, 681 P.2d 184 (Utah 1984). The Supreme Court stated in its decision that its determination was to be given only prospective relief and would be retroactive only in certain circumstances. Those circumstances only applied to the litigants in the Rio Algom case. Since appellant [Kennecott] was not one of the six taxpayers that were parties to that decision, then Rio Algom does not apply retroactively. (Rio Algom, supra)." R. 20-23.

8. On November 26, 1985, Kennecott filed a Complaint, Notice of Appeal and Petition for Review of a Decision of the Utah State

Tax Commission in the Tax Division of the Third Judicial District Court. This action appealed the Commission's June 27, 1985, decision and prayed for an order reducing the valuation of Kennecott's property by the Commission for 1983 by the sum of \$14,444,315, and for a refund of tax paid by Kennecott under protest, in the amount of \$898,475. R. 1-8.

9. On January 7, 1986, the Commission moved the District Court for an order dismissing Kennecott's complaint on the grounds that Kennecott was not entitled to relief by application of the ruling in Rio Algom, supra. In the alternative, and in the event that the District Court concluded Kennecott was entitled to relief under Rio Algom, the Commission moved that the case be remanded for further adjudication. R. 12-19.

10. On August 18, 1986, the District Court issued a Decision and Order on the Commission's motion to dismiss. The District Court denied the motion, stating that the Commission had erroneously decided that Kennecott "was entitled to no relief under either Rio Algom Corp. v. San Juan County, supra, or Article XIII, Sections 2 and 3, Utah Constitution." R. 220. The District Court did grant the Commission's motion to remand and instructed the Commission to give appropriate consideration to Rio Algom factors.

11. On June 27, 1987, the Commission entered an Order styled "Amended Final Decision and Order", which (1) reduced the assessed

value of Kennecott's property for 1983, and (2) further rolled back the reduced value to the 1978 level by applying a factor of 1.4. R. 247-250.

12. Salt Lake County (the "County") appealed the Commission's Amended Final Decision and Order and the District Court remanded for a second time, with directions indicating that the reduction of value was improper and directing the Commission to make express findings concerning whether the two-pronged test contained in Rio Algom, supra, had been met. R. 423-429.

13. On August 15, 1990, the Commission held a formal hearing pursuant to the Court's second remand order and, thereafter, entered an "order", dated September 5, 1991, determining that the requirements of Rio Algom had been met. R. 528-533.

14. Based upon the Commission's order of September 5, 1991, the District Court granted summary judgment in favor of Kennecott. R. 696-704, Appendix 1.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The sole issue in this appeal concerns the application and interpretation of this court's decision in the Rio Algom case, supra. It is the County's position that the District Court erred when it denied the motion of the County and the Commission to dismiss Kennecott's complaint. The District Court erroneously

interpreted the Rio Algom decision as establishing a test for pending litigants, when the Utah Supreme Court clearly intended the relief granted in Rio Algom to apply only to the six parties plaintiff in that case.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

KENNECOTT IS NOT ENTITLED TO THE RELIEF GRANTED TO THE SIX PARTIES PLAINTIFF IN THE RIO ALGOM DECISION

In proceedings below, the District Court erroneously found that Kennecott was entitled to establish the factors outlined in this court's Rio Algom decision in Part V, Proceedings on Remand. 681 P.2d, at 197. Resolution of this appeal hinges on the interpretation of this court's intentions relative to the relief granted in the Rio Algom case, supra. The language of the decision which is in dispute is set forth below:

For the same reasons that motivated the foregoing decisions, we direct that our holding of unconstitutionality be prospective and effective only from and after January 1, 1984. As to the six plaintiff-taxpayers who are parties to this appeal, however, this decision shall be retroactive for the year for which this suit for refund was brought.

V. PROCEEDINGS ON REMAND

Having concluded that § 59-5-109 is unconstitutional, it is appropriate to state the guidelines that should be applied in determining what relief may be granted on remand.

For the plaintiffs to recover an alleged overpayment of taxes paid under protest on the ground that § 59-5-109 caused a shift in the tax burden to their properties, plaintiffs must prove two elements. First, the plaintiffs must demonstrate that the county-assessed properties were appraised at less than their 1981 true values. Second, the plaintiffs must establish by independent evidence the true value of their own properties, and the appraisal used must give due effect to the same economic factors as the formulae used to value the county-assessed properties. [Citations omitted.]

681 P.2d, at 196-197.

The District Court, in its August 18, 1986, Memorandum Decision (R. 219-221), ruled that the Utah Supreme Court did not intend by its ruling in the Rio Algom case to "deny a taxpayer having a pending assessment challenge on March 13, 1984, the date Rio Algom was decided, the opportunity of fully pursuing its protest and obtaining any relief to which it may be entitled pursuant to Utah Code Annotated, Section 59-7-12 (1953), as amended." R. 220. It is the County's position, however, that that is precisely what the Supreme Court intended to do.

It is important to remember that the Rio Algom case involved a constitutional challenge to two statutes -- § 59-5-4.5, which the court declined to declare unconstitutional; and § 59-5-109, which the court held to be unconstitutional, applying that holding prospectively from January 1, 1984, with the exception of the six parties plaintiff in the Rio Algom case, itself. In connection

with its discussion of § 59-5-4.5, the court established a two-prong test that future challengers of the application of that statute must meet in order to prove that application of the statute to the challengers resulted in unequal treatment. 681 P.2d, at 192.

Having dealt with § 59-5-4.5, the Rio Algom court went on to discuss the constitutionality of § 59-5-109 and held it to be unconstitutional. The court ruled that its decision would be prospective and effective only after January 1, 1984, except as to the six parties plaintiff in the Rio Algom case, itself. The court then went on to outline what those six parties were required to establish, on remand, to obtain the relief granted to them, and to no others, in the Rio Algom decision. 681 P.2d, at 197. Thus, the court established a test which applied only to the six parties plaintiff in the Rio Algom case. The District Court interpreted the decision to mean that Kennecott was entitled to meet the burden outlined in the Rio Algom decision. That interpretation was clearly erroneous because the relief granted to Rio Algom plaintiffs is available only to the Rio Algom plaintiffs.

In its decision to apply the Rio Algom holding prospectively, this court considered and discussed a number of cases where this unusual relief was granted. Among those cases were the decisions of the United States Supreme Court in Lemon v. Kurtzman, 411 U.S.

192, 93 S.Ct. 1463, 36 L.Ed.2d 51 (1973)¹; City of Phoenix v. Kolodziejski, 399 U.S. 204, 90 S.Ct. 1990, 26 L.Ed.2d 523 (1970)²; Cipriano v. City of Houma, 395 U.S. 701, 89 S.Ct. 1897, 23 L.Ed. 2d 647 (1969)³; Northern Pipeline Co. v. Marathon Pipe Line Co., 458 U.S. 50, 102 S.Ct. 2858, 73 L.Ed.2d 598 (1982)⁴.

The Rio Algom court also considered the decisions in Southern Pacific Company v. Cochise County, 92 Ariz. 395, 377 P.2d 770 (1963). In that case, the Arizona Supreme Court found that a taxpayer could not be granted a refund of taxes paid under protest where granting the refund would threaten the financial solvency of the state taxing authorities. Id., at 778. In Strickland v. Newton County, 244 Ga. 54, 258 S.E.2d 132 (1979), another case relied upon by the Rio Algom court, the Georgia Supreme Court noted that when a court decides that one of its ruling shall operate only

1 Holding that a statement and those with whom it deals are not to be subjected to harsh, retrospective relief merely because they act on the basis of presumptively valid legislation, in the absence of contrary judicial direction. 411 U.S., at 193, 207-209.

2 Holding that it would be unjustifiably disruptive to give the decision determining election statute unconstitutional full retroactive effect and directing that the decision shall apply only to authorizations not final as of June 23, 1970. 399 U.S., at 214.

3 Holding that full retroactive effect to decision that limitation of franchise was unconstitutional would impose significant hardships on cities, bondholders and others connected with municipal utilities and directing that decision be applied only where, under state law, the time for challenging the election result had not expired and the elections were not final. 395 U.S., at 706.

4 Holding that the broad grant of jurisdiction to bankruptcy courts is unconstitutional, but retroactive application would visit substantial injustice and hardship on those who had relied on the bankruptcy courts' jurisdiction, the Supreme Court gave only prospective effect to its judgment. 458 U.S., at 88.

prospectively, that decision is subject to not set principles and the court may choose any relevant date in the interest of justice. 258 S.E.2d, at 133-134.

Of particular interest in this court's inclusion of Kansas City Millwright Co., Inc. v. Kalb, 221 Kan. 658, 562 P.2d 65 (1977), in its discussion concerning prospective application of determinations of statutory unconstitutionality. In that case, the court held that its decision would control the rights of all taxpayers who had paid taxes under protest and had pending actions challenging the validity of the tax on the date the decision of the Kansas Supreme Court was announced. Id., at 74. It is clear, then, that the Utah Supreme Court, in deciding what date its Rio Algom decision would become effect and to which parties it would apply, was wholly aware that it could make the ruling applicable to any party with an action pending and affirmatively chose not to do so.

Loyal Order of Moose No. 259 v. County Bd., 657 P.2d 257 (Utah 1982), is also illustrative. That case was decided on October 28, 1982. However, this court determined that the rules adopted should be applied prospectively, with a delayed effective date of January 1, 1983. Discussing its decision concerning the effective date of its ruling, this court noted:

Ordinarily an overruling decision has retro-active operation. [Citation omitted.] Retro-

active operation occurs, to some degree, whenever a case is applied in any manner to control the legal consequences flowing from fact situations which arose at a point earlier than the announcement of the new rule. The application may be to parties and facts of the case where the new rule is announced, to pending cases, to future-initiated cases arising from earlier events, or in some rare instances to terminated cases which are subject to collateral attack. [Citation omitted.]

Constitutional law neither requires nor prohibits retroactive operation of an overruling decision. A decision's operative effect is treated as a function of judicial policy rather than judicial power. [Citations omitted.] In other words, the extent of the decision's application is left to the discretion of the court. [Citations omitted.]

Where overruled law has been justifiably relied upon or where retroactive operation creates a burden, the court, in its discretion, may prohibit retroactive operation of the overruling decision. [Citation omitted.] In such instances, prospective operation of a court decision has long been applied. [Citation omitted.] In some cases, purely prospective application of the declared law of the case results in the new law not applying to the parties in the overruling case. [Citations omitted.]

657 P.2d, at 264-265.

It is abundantly clear that this court was aware that there might be pending challenges to the constitutionality of § 59-5-109 at the time it rendered its decision in Rio Algom and made a conscious decision to apply the ruling only to the six parties plaintiff in that case. After balancing the comparative burdens,

this court determined that severe hardship which would be imposed on local governmental units if their decision were given retroactive effect. 681 P.2d, at 196. Thus, this court limited its decision and held that it would control the rights of only the parties to the decision that overruled the constitutionality of § 59-5-109.

The District Court misinterpreted this court's ruling in Rio Algom, when it found that Kennecott was entitled to pursue its appeal, the basis of which that Kennecott, as a state assessed entity, was unconstitutionally overassessed because it did not receive the benefit of the rollback granted to locally assessed properties under § 59-5-109 in 1983. The value of the property was not in dispute; that value was agreed upon by all parties. The single issue upon which Kennecott's challenge was based was whether § 59-5-109 deprived Kennecott of equal treatment under Article XIII, Sections 2 and 3 of the Utah Constitution.

This court determined that § 59-5-109 was, in fact, violative of Article XIII, Sections 2 and 3 and ruled that, effective January 1, 1984. 681 P.2d, at 196. Having made that ruling, this court went on to direct that, in proceedings on remand, the six parties plaintiff could recover an overpayment of taxes if they established (1) that county assessed properties were appraised at less than their true values for the tax year at issue and (2) the true value

of their own properties, using an appraisal that gave due effect to the same economic factors as the formulae used to value the county-assessed properties. 681 P.2d, at 197.

The lien date relative to the Kennecott appeal here is January 1, 1983, a year prior to the effective date of this court's ruling in Rio Algom. Therefore, during the time period at issue, § 59-5-109 is presumed to be constitutional. The basis for Kennecott's appeal was that application of § 59-5-109 to locally assessed properties and not state assessed properties was unconstitutional. That issue was resolved against Kennecott by virtue of the effective date of this court's decision in Rio Algom.

CONCLUSION