1992

Kennecott Corporation v. Salt Lake County and The Utah State Tax Commission of Utah : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The trial court correctly concluded that Rio Algom did not foreclose Kennecott's challenge to its January 1, 1983 assessment upon the basis that Kennecott's rights under Article XIII, Sections 2, 3 and 4 of the Utah Constitution were violated when locally assessed real property was rolled back to its January 1, 1978 level, whereas Kennecott's centrally assessed real property was not given the benefit of that rollback. Under Utah law Kennecott had done everything in its power to protect its assertion that Kennecott's constitutional rights were violated by the Commission in the original January 1, 1983 assessment.

Kennecott's rights under the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article I, Sections 7 and 24 of the Utah Constitution will be violated if Kennecott is not

permitted to challenge its assessment as unlawful because of an unconstitutional statute.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

JUDGE RIGTRUP WAS CORRECT IN HOLDING KENNECOTT WAS ENTITLED TO RELIEF FROM THE APPLICATION OF AN UNCONSTITUTIONAL STATUTE AS TO KENNECOTT'S JANUARY 1, 1983 ASSESSMENT.

In Rio Algom Mining Corp. v. San Juan County, 681 P.2d 184 (Utah 1984), the Utah Supreme Court held that Utah Code Ann. § 59-5-109 (Supp. 1981) was unconstitutional and invalid because the statute violated the provisions of Article XIII, Sections 2 and 3 of the Utah Constitution. The statute which the court held unconstitutional was effective in 1981, 1982, 1983 and, prior to its repeal, in 1984. In declaring that the Rio Algom plaintiffs' rights under Article XIII, Sections 2 and 3 of the Utah Constitution were violated in 1981, as a result of the implementation by San Juan County of Utah Code Ann. § 59-5-109, supra, the court stated:

It necessarily follows that an indefinite, partial freeze on the valuation of some properties in the state is inherently inconsistent with the basic concept of an ad valorem tax system. Inevitably, the statute would produce valuations that are not based on market value and that are in violation of the principal of uniformity.

681 P.2d at 195. And further:

In sum, the fixing of baseline assessments of county-assessed real properties as of a given year in the past, see Utah Hotel Company v.

Yorgason, Utah, 659 P.2d 1056 (1983), is a violation of Article XIII, Sections 2 and 3 and is unconstitutional.

681 P.2d at 195.

Following this declaration of unconstitutionality, the court then discussed the effect its decision was to be given, stating as follows:

One of the criticisms of giving only prospective effect to a decision is that it turns the court's opinion into an advisory opinion or dicta. It also deprives the litigants, who have sustained the burden of attacking an unconstitutional statute, of the fruits of their victory. For this reason, prospective effect may even discourage challenges to statutes of questionable validity. In response to these considerations, some decisions that give only prospective effect to a holding of unconstitutionality as to all other parties give the holding retroactive effect as to the litigants or others who have litigation pending. [Citations deleted.] We gave this kind of limited retroactive effect to a decision that local government legislation was unconstitutional, a decision that was otherwise prospective only. [Citations deleted.]

For the same reasons that motivated the foregoing decisions, we direct that our holding of unconstitutionality be prospective and effective only from and after January 1, 1984. As to the six plaintiff-taxpayers who are parties to this appeal, however, this decision shall be retroactive for the year for which this suit for refund was brought.

681 P.2d at 196.

The County, in this appeal, is asserting that the meaning of the court's decision respecting the retroactive, versus

prospective, effect of Rio Algom is that Kennecott, a state assessed property owner which took every step available under Utah law to properly assert that its rights under the Utah constitution had been violated in the January 1, 1983 Commission assessment, has no relief available to it even though Kennecott's constitutional rights were admittedly violated in that assessment.³

This argument by the County is not supported by Rio Algom. As shown in the language from Rio Algom reproduced above, the court in that decision did not address the situation of parties who, at the time of the decision, had litigation pending challenging the constitutionality of Utah Code Ann. § 59-5-109, Kennecott's precise position in this case. What was specifically addressed in Rio Algom was (1) the rights of the six plaintiffs in that case; and (2) the general retroactive effect of the holding that Utah Code Ann. § 59-5-109 was unconstitutional. A careful review of the Rio Algom decision reveals that with respect to

³ As is shown in Kennecott's Statement of Relevant Facts, supra, Kennecott initiated its challenge to its 1983 assessment as required under Utah Code Ann. § 59-7-12 before the Rio Algom decision was issued. Not only did Kennecott challenge its assessment before the Commission under Utah Code Ann. § 59-7-12, it also commenced the tax protest action under Utah Code Ann. § 59-11-11, supra, within six months of paying these taxes under protest, when it became clear that no final decision respecting Kennecott's assessment would be forthcoming from the Commission before the six month statute of limitations respecting tax protest actions would have run. Thus, Kennecott did all it could to preserve its rights.

the issue of prospectivity versus retroactivity, the court was relying upon the law of pure prospectivity in setting an effective date of January 1, 1984, even though what was implemented by the court in Rio Algom was "modified" or "selective" prospectivity.⁴

In a very recent decision of the United States Supreme Court "selective" prospectivity, as urged by the County in this case, was specifically rejected. In James B. Beam Distilling Co. v. Georgia, 501 U.S. ____, 111 S. Ct. 2439, 115 L.Ed.2d 481 (1991), the Court held that "selective" prospectivity was inappropriate in a civil context because it violates the principles of stare decisis and the rule of law. In Beam the Court stated:

But selective prospectivity also breaches the principle that litigants in similar situations should be treated the same, a

⁴ "Selective" or "modified" prospectivity is a situation where the new rule of law is applied to the litigants before the court, and perhaps to others with litigation pending, retroactively, but prospectively as to all others. "Pure" prospectivity, is the situation where the new rule of law is only applied after the effective date of the newly announced rule of law. It is not applied retroactively to anyone, including the litigants in the case where the new rule is announced. Each of the following cases cited in the Rio Algom decision is a "pure" prospectivity, not a "selective" prospectivity, decision: Loyal Order of Moose v. County Board, 657 P.2d 257 (Utah 1982); Great Northern Railway v. Sunburst Oil & Refining Co., 287 U.S. 358 (1932); Lemon v. Kurtzman, 411 U.S. 192 (1973); Northern Construction Pipeline Co. v. Marathon Pipeline Co., 458 U.S. 50 (1982); Southern Pacific Co. v. Cochise County, 377 P.2d 770 (Ariz. 1963); Deltona Corp. v. Bailey, 336 So.2d 1163 (Fla. 1976); Jacobs v. Lexington - Fayette Urban County Gov't, 450 SW.2d 10 (Ky. 1977); Salorio v. Glaser, 461 A.2d 1100 (N.J. 1983); Soo Line Railroad v. State, 286 NW.2d 459 (N.D. 1979); Gottlieb v. City of Milwaukee, 147 NW.2d 633 (Wis. 1977).

fundamental component of stare decisis and the rule of law generally. See R. Wasserstrom, *The Judicial Decision* 69-72 (1961). "We depart from this basic judicial tradition when we simply pick and choose from among similarly situated defendants those who alone will receive the benefit of a 'new' rule of constitutional law." Desist v. United States, 394 U.S. 244, 258-59, 22 L.Ed.2d 248, 89 S. Ct. 1030 (1969) (Harlan, J., dissenting); see also, Von Moschzisker, *Stare Decisis in Courts of Last Resort*, 37 Harv. L. Rev. 409, 425 (1924). For this reason, we abandoned the possibility of selective prospectivity in the criminal context in Griffith v. Kentucky, 479 U.S. 314, 328, 93 L.Ed.2d 649, 107 S. Ct. 708 (1987), even where the new rule constituted a "clear break" with previous law, in favor of completely retroactive application of all decisions to cases pending on direct review. Though Griffith was held not to dispose of the matter of civil retroactivity, see id., at 322, n.8, 93 L.Ed.2d 649, 107 S. Ct. 708, selective prospectivity appears never to have been endorsed in the civil context. [*American Trucking Associations, Inc. v. Smith*, 496 U.S. [167] at ____, 110 L.Ed.2d 148, 110 S. Ct. 2323 (plurality opinion)]. This case presents the issue.⁵

111 S. Ct. 2445, 115 L.Ed.2d 489-90.

In Beam, the plaintiff brought an action against Georgia seeking a refund of taxes paid under a statute which had been held unconstitutional in violation of the commerce clause in

⁵ The Court's opinion in Beam was a plurality decision, written by Justice Souter and joined in by Justice Stevens. Justice White wrote a concurring opinion which also rejected "selective" prospectivity, but reserved the issue of "pure" prospectivity. Justice Scalia, in a concurring opinion which was joined in by Justices Blackmun and Marshall, would have rejected both "selective" and "pure" prospectivity as not permitted by the constitution. Justices O'Connor, Rehnquist and Kennedy dissented.

Bacchus Imports Ltd. v. Dias, 468 U.S. 263, 104 S.Ct. 3049, 82 L.Ed.2d 200 (1984). Both the trial court, a state court, and the Supreme Court of Georgia declared the challenged tax unconstitutional and enjoined any future enforcement, but denied the liquor manufacturer's tax refund request holding that the ruling was to apply only prospectively. In Beam, the Court reversed the decision of the Georgia Supreme Court, holding that because the Bacchus case applied retroactively to the litigants in that case, the Bacchus rule would also have to be applied to the plaintiff in Beam, a similarly situated litigant. In so holding, the Court stated:

Bacchus thus applied its own rule, just as if it had reversed and remanded without further ado, and yet of course the Georgia courts refused to apply that rule with respect to the litigants in this case. Thus, the question is whether it is error to refuse to apply a rule of federal law retroactively after the case announcing the rule has already done so. We hold that it is, principles of equality and stare decisis here prevailing over any claim based on a Chevron Oil analysis.

111 S. Ct. at 2446, 115 L.Ed.2d at 491. And further;

Of course, retroactivity in civil cases must be limited by the need for finality, see Chicot County Drainage District v. Baxter State Bank, 308 U.S. 371, 84 L.Ed. 329, 60 S. Ct. 317 (1940); once suit is barred by res judicata or by statutes of limitation or repose, a new rule cannot reopen the door already closed.

111 S. Ct. at 2446, 115 L.Ed.2d at 492.

The Court's analysis in Beam is particularly apropos in this case.⁶ In Rio Algom, just as in Bacchus, the litigants had the ruling applied retroactively. In Rio Algom that ruling was applied to the Rio Algom plaintiffs in 1981, even though the decision that Utah Code Ann. § 59-5-109 was unconstitutional was issued on March 13, 1984. Similarly, in this case, Kennecott sought to have that ruling applied to it for tax year 1983, two years after 1981, the year in which the Rio Algom plaintiffs were litigating their taxes. For the reasons enunciated in Beam, Rio Algom should not be read as foreclosing Kennecott's right to relief from the application of an unconstitutional statute in 1983, when Kennecott is not only "similarly situated" to the Rio Algom plaintiffs, but had litigation pending over the exact issue

⁶ The Supreme Court of Washington in Robinson v. City of Seattle, 119 Wash. 2d 34, _____, 830 P.2d 318, 342-43 (1992), adopted the Court's analysis and result in Beam when it rejected selective prospectivity. The Washington court stated:

We are persuaded that the Beam Distilling holding is sound. While our decision in National Can relied in part on the Chevron Oil analysis, we now modify our rule from National Can in a manner consistent with the limitations on the Chevron Oil rule effected in Beam Distilling. We expressly limit our holding in this case to the abolishment of selective prospectivity in the application of our state appellate decisions.

Id. 830 P.2d at 343. Utah should also reject selective prospectivity and sustain the trial court's decision in this case.

decided in Rio Algom at the time the decision in that case was issued.⁷

In Rio Algom the court expressed some concern that to apply its holding that Utah Code Ann. § 59-5-109 was unconstitutional could mean that "local governments will be subject to enormous financial and administrative burdens." Rio Algom, 681 P.2d at 195, and further: "Local governments operate on very precise and often strained budgets . . . " Id.

This concern is largely nonexistent in this case. Political subdivisions in Utah, including Salt Lake County, have specific authority to levy taxes to raise revenue in order to satisfy judgments rendered against them. Utah Code Ann. § 63-30-27 (1989) specifically provides:

(1) Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, all political subdivisions may levy an annual property tax sufficient to pay the following:

- (a) any claim;
- (b) any settlement;

⁷ The court in Rio Algom, at page 196, cites one other Utah case where "selective" prospectivity had been announced and applied. In Carter v. Beaver County Service Area No. 1, 16 Utah 2d 280, 283, 399 P.2d 440, 442 (1965), the court granted a taxpayer a declaratory judgment holding the County Service Area Act unconstitutional, but stating; "In so declaring we desire it to be understood that this ruling applies to the instant controversy, and apart from this, the decision is to have prospective not retroactive effect." No damage relief, tax refund relief, or injunctive relief was sought by plaintiff in that case. Thus, the case may be more properly read as a "pure" prospectivity case since no other citizens' rights were adversely impacted by the decision of prospectivity.

(c) any judgment, including any judgment against an elected official or employee of any political subdivision, including peace officers, based upon a claim for punitive damages but the authority of a political subdivision for the payment of any judgment for punitive damages is limited in any individual case to \$10,000;

(d) the cost to defend any claim, settlement, or judgment; or

(e) the establishment and maintenance of a reserve fund for the payment of claims, settlements or judgments as may be reasonably anticipated.

(2) . . . No levy under this section may exceed .0001 per dollar of taxable value of taxable property. The revenues derived from this levy may not be used for any other purpose than those stipulated in this section.

Furthermore, to the extent a financial hardship may be imposed upon one of Utah's political subdivisions because of the need to refund taxes, Utah Code Ann. § 63-30-25 (1989) specifically permits the payment of an "award" in installments. Thus the "hardship" expressed by the County is nonexistent, or at least, minimal. Certainly any "hardship" should not permit the County and the Commission to violate Kennecott's constitutional rights under Article XIII, Sections 2 and 3 of the Utah Constitution and then retain the funds extorted as a result of that violation. This is simply unconscionable, and as will be pointed out hereinbelow, will result in a separate violation of

Kennecott's rights to due process of law and equal protection under the United States and Utah constitutions.⁸

POINT II

DENIAL OF RELIEF TO KENNECOTT RESPECTING ITS
JANUARY 1, 1983 ASSESSMENT WILL VIOLATE KEN-
NECOTT'S DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION
RIGHTS UNDER THE UNITED STATES AND UTAH
CONSTITUTIONS.

Denying relief to Kennecott in this case will result in Kennecott being unable to obtain any relief from an unconstitutional assessment. Consequently, such a denial will result in a separate violation of Kennecott's due process rights. This becomes clear when the recent decision of the United States Supreme Court in McKesson Corp. v. Division of Alcoholic

⁸ The County and the court may have some concern that a decision in Kennecott's favor may result in a series of lawsuits by others over the unconstitutionality of Utah Code Ann. § 59-5-109. That concern is also addressed by Judge Souter in his Beam opinion, where he stated that the retroactivity principle announced in Beam is necessarily limited by appropriate statutes of limitation as well as the doctrine of res judicata. In this situation, further litigation over Utah Code Ann. § 59-5-109, supra, is highly unlikely. If a state assessed taxpayer believed his real property assessment by the Commission was unlawful because of Utah Code Ann. § 59-5-109, he would have had to bring that assertion before the Commission within 30 days of having received his Notice of Assessment in 1981, 1982 or 1983. See Utah Code Ann. § 59-7-12 (1975). If that taxpayer decided to bring a tax protest action challenging the taxes he paid as a result of an unconstitutional assessment, that action would have to have been brought within six months of the date the taxes were paid under protest, or before May 30, 1984 at the latest. See Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-31 (1992) and Ponderosa One Limited Partnership v. Salt Lake Suburban Sanitary Dist., 738 P.2d 635 (Utah 1987).

Beverages & Tobacco, 496 U.S. 18, 110 S. Ct. 2238, 110 L.Ed.2d 17 (1990) is examined.

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